City of El Paso CITIZEN PARTICIPATION PLAN



TABLE OF CONTENTS

Executive Summary	3
Consolidated Plan, Guaranteed Loan Funds and Assessment of Fair Hou	_
Guidelines	
Components of Consolidated Plan	4
Lead Agency of Citizen Participation Plan for the Consolidated Plan	4
Citizen Participation Plan	5
Encouragement of Citizen Participation	
Publication + General Circulation Public Hearings	
Public Comment	
Other Citizen Engagement Guidelines	7
Dissemination of Funding Information	7
Residential Anti-Displacement + Relocation Assistance Plan	7
Criteria for Substantial Amendments	7
Steering Committee for Citizen Participation	8
Membership	8
Responsibilities	9
Conflict of Interest	9
Additional Guidelines	10
Annual Action Plan	10
Public Hearings	10
Stages of Development	11
Proposal Review Procedure	11
Substantial Amendments	11
Program Implementation + Amendments	12
Assessment of Performance	
Available Information	13
Byanane nullillallill	7.5

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Citizen Participation Plan provides a guide for citizens and citizen organizations to participate in an advisory role in planning, implementing and assessing the Community Development Block Grant Program.

The Plan describes procedures by which each of the requirements of the program will be carried out. Additionally, the Plan sets forth how citizens may become involved in the program. Any amendments to the Citizen Participation Plan will be subject to all provisions within this Citizen Participation Plan.

At a minimum, citizens shall have an opportunity to submit comments and proposals regarding the program in the following manner:

- Directly to the Department of Community and Human Development;
- Directly to the Steering Committee;
- Directly to any Steering Committee member;
- At formal Public Hearings; and
- At community engagement events and town hall forums

The Citizen Participation Plan is available in English and Spanish at no charge at the Department of Community and Human Development (DCHD), 801 Texas Avenue, El Paso, Texas, 79901; at the City's public libraries, the UTEP Library, and at the El Paso Community College Campus Libraries. Addresses of the libraries can be found in **Attachment E**. The Citizen Participation Plan is also available on the City's website (http://www.elpasotexas.gov/community-and-human-development).

Citizens are encouraged to obtain copies of the Citizen Participation Plan in order to more effectively participate in the Program.

EXPEDITED PROCESS FOR COVID-19 RESPONSE & RECOVERY

The Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) has issued specific program waivers and flexibilities to allow grantees to direct federal funds to the COVID-19 pandemic response in an expedited manner. The following requirements and procedures described in this section override all applicable requirements and procedures located in other sections of this document until such time as HUD lifts those applicable waivers and flexibilities.

- Public Comment for Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program A notice of proposed Annual
 Action Plan and/or Consolidated Plan related to the Community Development Block Grant Program, and
 substantial amendments to the City's Annual Action Plan and/or Consolidated Plan, related to CDBG, will be
 published on the City's web site no less than 5 days before the final plans or substantial amendments are
 considered for adoption by City Council in order to provide a period of 5 days for comments from the public.
- <u>Public Comment for Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG) Program</u> Notice of substantial amendments to the City's Annual Action Plan and/or Consolidated Plan, related to ESG, will be published on the City's web site for public review following adoption by City Council.
- <u>Public Hearings</u> In-person public hearings are not required. The City may meet public hearing requirements
 with virtual public hearings if: 1) national/local health authorities recommend social distancing and limiting
 public gatherings for public health reasons; and 2) virtual hearings provide reasonable notification and access
 for citizens in accordance with the City's certifications, timely responses from local officials to all citizen
 questions and issues, and public access to all questions and responses.
- <u>Plan Availability</u> Policies and Procedures, Citizen Participation Plans and Annual and Consolidated Plans
 will be available at public facilities, as delineated in this document, within 2 weeks of the reopening of those
 public facilities, as they are currently closed under emergency orders.

CONSOLIDATED PLAN, GUARANTEED LOAN FUNDS AND ASSESSMENT OF FAIR HOUSING GUIDELINES

COMPONENTS OF CONSOLIDATED PLAN

The City of El Paso is required to submit to the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) a Consolidated Plan that includes the following components:

- <u>Executive Summary</u> A summary that includes the objectives and outcomes identified in the plan and an evaluation of past performance.
- <u>Citizen Participation</u> A summary of the citizen participation process used in the development of the Consolidated Plan, explaining the utilization of public notices, public hearings, public involvement, availability to the public and technical assistance.
- Housing and Homeless Needs Assessment An estimate of the city's housing needs for the ensuing five years; a concise
 summary of the nature and extent of homelessness in the jurisdiction; an estimate of the number of persons in various
 subpopulations that are not homeless, but may require housing or supportive services (special needs); and an estimate
 on the number of housing units that contain lead-based paint hazards.
- <u>Housing Market Analysis</u> A description of the significant characteristics of the city's housing market; a concise summary of the needs of public housing; a description (number and targeting) of assisted housing units; a concise summary of the existing facilities and services that assist the city's homeless; a description of the special need facilities and services; and an explanation of the barriers to affordable housing.
- <u>Strategic Plan</u> A plan for a period established by the city that brings needs, priority needs, priorities, specific objectives and strategies together in a coherent strategic plan; including the time period covered by the plan, a priority needs analysis, and geographic distribution and specific objectives.
- <u>Priority identification</u> The identification of priority needs, strategies and objectives related to Housing, Homeless, Special Needs Populations, Community Development and Cross Cutting Issues.
- <u>Assessment of Fair Housing (AFH)</u> The assessment of information on the current state of neighborhood demographics
 and assets to identify and understand local and regional fair housing issues and to set goals for improving fair housing
 choice and access to opportunity.

LEAD AGENCY OF CITIZEN PARTICIPATION PLAN FOR THE CONSOLIDATED PLAN

The City's DCHD, located at 801 Texas Avenue, El Paso, Texas 79901, is the lead agency for fulfilling the City's responsibilities in relation to this Citizen Participation Plan. Responsibilities of the Department may include the following:, :

- Provide technical assistance to representatives of low- and moderate-income persons and groups, neighborhood
 associations and other civic and citizen organizations when requested so that they may adequately participate in planning,
 implementing, and assessing the program;
- Provide technical assistance to representatives of low- and moderate-income persons and groups, neighborhood
 associations, and other civic and citizen organizations which request assistance in developing proposals and comments;
- Inform the public about the Community Development Program and the citizen participation process through the local media in both English and Spanish languages;
- Assist the Steering Committee in scheduling and conducting public hearings and Committee meetings;
- Advise the Steering Committee on administrative aspects of the Community Development Program;
- Provide the Steering Committee with reports on the status of facility projects and other pertinent matters;
- Maintain all records of the Citizen Participation process, including minutes of public hearings and Committee meetings;
- Review all proposals for entitlement grants funding;
- Schedule an annual public hearing, to be conducted by the Steering Committee, to solicit comments about housing and community development needs and proposals related to community development;
- Schedule an annual public hearing on program needs, performance and proposed activities to be conducted at a regularly scheduled City Council meeting; and

- The level and type of technical assistance provided shall be that which the City deems appropriate to enable low- and
 moderate-income persons and groups, neighborhood associations and other civic and citizen organizations which request
 assistance to participate in planning, implementing and assessing the program and to develop proposals and comments.
- Other City Departments: City Departments, in addition to the Department of Community Development, shall be requested to provide technical assistance to the Steering Committee, at public hearings, and at neighborhood association meetings, in order to translate neighborhood needs into specific projects and activities when appropriate.

CITIZEN PARTICIPATION PLAN

This Citizen Participation Plan sets forth the policies and procedures which the City of El Paso will follow to encourage citizen participation in the development of the Consolidated Plan and any substantial amendments to it; development of a guaranteed loan program application and subsequent substantial amendments thereof; Assessment of Fair Housing (AFH) and any revisions required; and the annual performance report.

ENCOURAGEMENT OF CITIZEN PARTICIPATION

The Citizen Participation Plan and AFH are designed specifically to encourage participation by low- and moderate-income persons and residents of predominantly low- and moderate-income neighborhoods, particularly those living in areas where Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds and guaranteed loan funds are proposed to be used. A map of the City of El Paso, indicating the areas of the City that have been identified as predominantly low- and moderate-income in accordance with HUD guidelines, is included as **Attachment B**. The City will take all appropriate actions to encourage the participation of all of its citizens, including minorities and non-English speaking persons, as well as persons with disabilities, persons living in areas designated by the local jurisdiction as a revitalization area and areas designated by either a local jurisdiction or a state as a slum or blight area. The City will encourage the participation of Continuums of Care, businesses, developers, non-profit organizations, philanthropic organizations, and community-based and faith-based organizations.

The City of El Paso shall consult with the El Paso Public Housing Authority, resident advisory boards, resident councils and resident management corporations in order to encourage the participation of residents of public and assisted housing in the process of developing and implementing the Consolidated Plan, guaranteed loan funds and AFH, along with other low-income residents of targeted revitalization areas in which the public and assisted housing is located.

The City of El Paso shall provide information to the El Paso Public Housing Authority about Consolidated Plan, guaranteed loan funds and AFH activities related to the Authority's housing developments and surrounding communities, local and regional institutions. Subsequently, the Housing Authority will make this information available as required under the Comprehensive Grant Program.

Additionally, the City will continue to follow the Community Development Program Citizen Participation Process to serve specifically as a guide to citizens for participation in planning, implementing and assessing the City's Community Development Block Grant Program.

PUBLICATION + GENERAL CIRCULATION

The City will publish the proposed Consolidated Plan, any guaranteed loan application, or AFH in a manner that affords citizens, public agencies, and other interested parties a reasonable opportunity to examine its contents and to submit comments. A summary of the proposed Consolidated Plan, the guaranteed loan application, or AFH will be published in a general circulation newspaper, no less than 30 days before the adoption of the final plan or the submission of the guaranteed loan application. The summary that is published in the newspaper will describe the contents and purpose of the Consolidated Plan, the guaranteed loan application, or AFH and will include a list of the locations where copies of the entire proposed Consolidated Plan, the guaranteed loan application, or AFH may be examined. Copies of the proposed Consolidated Plan, the guaranteed loan application, or AFH will be made available for review at the City's DCHD, 801 Texas Avenue, El Paso, Texas 79901; at the City's public libraries; the University of Texas at El Paso Library and El Paso Community College campus libraries (See **Attachment E**); and the City's web site. In addition, the City will provide a reasonable number of free copies of the Plan, the guaranteed loan application, or AFH to citizens and groups that request it.

PUBLIC HEARINGS

The City will hold at least two public hearings per year to obtain citizen comments and to respond to proposals and questions, to be conducted at a minimum of two different stages of the program year. Together, the hearings will address housing and community development needs, development of proposed activities, and review of program performance. At least one of these hearings will be held before the Consolidated Plan, guaranteed loan application, or AFH is published for comment or before the guaranteed loan application is submitted to HUD in order to obtain the comments of citizens on housing and community development needs, including priority non-housing community development needs.

Notice of the date and time of the public hearings (with sufficient information about the subject of the hearing to permit informed comment) will be published in a general circulation newspaper and on the City's web site. Public hearings will be held at times and locations convenient to potential and actual beneficiaries. In order to assure that there is accommodation for persons with disabilities, the City's Accessibility and ADA Compliance Officer will be consulted about the accessibility of potential meeting sites, as needed.

Public notices about the Consolidated Plan, the guaranteed loan application, AFH, or substantial amendments to the Consolidated Plan, guaranteed loan program, or AFH will be published in both English and Spanish. In the case of public hearings where a significant number of non-English speaking residents can be reasonably expected to participate, the City will assure that an interpreter is present to interpret the proceedings for non-English speakers, and written handouts will be provided in English and Spanish.

Specific efforts will be made to involve residents of low- and moderate-income areas in local meetings related to the Consolidated Plan, the guaranteed loan program, or AFH. Such efforts may include, but are not limited to, contacting neighborhood associations and organizations in low- and moderate-income areas, distributing handbills or other written literature in eligible areas, posting information on the City's website and use of the media. Written citizen proposals and comments will also be encouraged.

PUBLIC COMMENT

- Consolidated Plan, guaranteed loan funds and AFH. A comment period of not less than 30 days will be provided to receive comments from citizens on the proposed Consolidated Plan, the proposed guaranteed loan application, or AFH. The City shall consider any comments of citizens received in writing, or orally at the public hearings, in preparing the final Consolidated Plan, guaranteed loan application or AFH. A summary of these comments, and a summary of any comments not accepted and the reasons therefor, shall be attached to the final Consolidated Plan, guaranteed loan application or AFH.
- Substantial Amendments. The City will provide citizens with reasonable notice and an opportunity to comment on substantial amendments. A notice of the proposed substantial amendment will be published in a general circulation newspaper and on the City's web site no less than 30 days before the amendment is implemented in order to provide a period of 30 days for comments. Substantial amendments to the Consolidated Plan, the guaranteed loan program, AFH, or other grant program will be acted upon by the El Paso City Council in open City Council meetings.

The City will consider any comments of citizens received in writing, or orally, at public hearings, if any, in preparing the substantial amendment. A summary of these comments, and a summary of any comments not accepted and the reasons therefore, shall be attached to the substantial amendment of the Consolidated Plan, the guaranteed loan program, AFH, or other grant program.

• **Performance Reports.** The City will provide citizens with reasonable notice and an opportunity to comment on performance reports. The City will publish in a general circulation newspaper and the City's web site a notice of the availability of the Consolidated Plan performance report no less than 15 days before the submission date in order to provide a period of no less than 15 days to receive comments before the performance report is submitted to HUD.

The City will consider any comments of citizens received in writing, or orally at public hearings in preparing the performance report. A summary of these comments or views shall be attached to the performance report.

OTHER CITIZEN ENGAGEMENT GUIDELINES

- Availability to Public. The Consolidated Plan, as adopted, any substantial amendments to the Consolidated Plan, the
 guaranteed loan application and any substantial amendments thereof, AFH, and the performance report will be available
 to the public. These materials will be available at the Office of the City's DCHD, 801 Texas Avenue, El Paso, Texas
 79901; at the City's public libraries; the University of Texas at El Paso Library and El Paso Community College campus
 libraries (See Attachment E); and the City's web site. Materials will be made available upon request in a form accessible
 to persons with disabilities and translated for non-English speaking residents.
- Access to Records. The City will provide citizens, public agencies, and other interested parties with reasonable and
 timely access to information and records relating to the City's Consolidated Plan and the City's use of assistance under
 the programs covered by the Consolidated Plan during the preceding five years.
- **Technical Assistance**. The City will provide technical assistance to any prospective applicant and/or groups representative of persons of low- and moderate-income that request such assistance in developing proposals for funding assistance under any of the programs covered by the Consolidated Plan and the guaranteed loan program. The provision of technical assistance does not guarantee the provision of funds to the groups.
- Complaints. The City will provide a timely, substantive written response to every written citizen complaint regarding programs or activities related to the Consolidated Plan, the guaranteed loan program, or AFH within 15 working days, when practicable. Complaints and grievances should be submitted in writing to the City's DCHD, 801 Texas Avenue, El Paso, Texas 79901.

DISSEMINATION OF FUNDING INFORMATION

Before the City adopts a Consolidated Plan, submits a guaranteed loan application, or develops an AFH, the City will make available to citizens, public agencies, and other interested parties information that includes the amount of assistance the City expects to receive or expects to be made available (including grant funds, guaranteed loan funds and anticipated program income) and the range of activities that may be undertaken, including the estimated amount that will benefit persons of low-and moderate-income. The City will publish this information in a general circulation newspaper. The information will also be disseminated at neighborhood and agency meetings during the development phase of the Consolidated Plan, guaranteed loan application, or AFH.

RESIDENTIAL ANTI-DISPLACEMENT + RELOCATION ASSISTANCE PLAN

The City has adopted a Residential Anti-Displacement and Relocation Assistance Plan, included as **Attachment D**, which describes in detail the measures that the City will take to assist any persons displaced, and specifies the types and levels of assistance the City will make available (or require others to make available) to persons displaced, even if the City expects no displacement to occur. This Plan is available to the public at the City's DCHD, 801 Texas Avenue, El Paso, Texas 79901.

CRITERIA FOR SUBSTANTIAL AMENDMENTS

Substantial amendments to the Consolidated Plan, the guaranteed loan program, AFH, or other grant programs are subject to the citizen participation process. The following criteria will be used to identify substantial amendments to the Consolidated Plan, the guaranteed loan program, or AFH:

- The City adds priorities to the Consolidated Plan or deletes priorities that were included in the Consolidated Plan for housing, homelessness or community development.
- The City changes the method of distribution of funds.
- The City decides to carry out, under any Federal grant program, an eligible project that was not previously described in the Consolidated Plan. This does not apply to changes to activities within an existing project.
- The City decides **not** to carry out, under any Federal grant program, an eligible project that was described in the Consolidated Plan. This does not apply to changes to activities within an existing project.

- The City changes the purpose and scope of a project by increasing or decreasing the project's scope of services, target population, or budget by more than 75% <u>and</u> \$50,000 from the original description. This does not apply to changes to activities within an existing project unless it would result in a change of more than 75% and \$50,000 to the overall project.
- The City changes the location of a physical project outside the previously described area of the population to be served to another eligible area. This does not apply to Public Services, Economic Development or other non-physical projects.
- The City changes the eligible beneficiaries of an activity by reducing or increasing the beneficiaries by more than 50% due to any of the following circumstances:
 - For physical projects, change of physical location of the project to another eligible area and, therefore, changing the eligible service area.
 - o For non-physical projects such as Public Services and Economic Development, a change of eligible client criteria as categorized in the Consolidated Plan (e.g. Seniors to Youth).
 - o The City decides to carry out under the guaranteed loan program an eligible activity that was not previously described in the loan guarantee application.
 - The City decides not to carry out under the guaranteed loan program an eligible activity that was previously described in the loan guarantee application.

The City will revise the Assessment of Fair Housing when:

- A material change in the jurisdiction no longer reflects actual circumstances and within twelve (12) months of the material change; or
- A Presidentially declared disaster and within two years of the declaration; or
- Upon notification from HUD that a change is required and within the time frame specified by HUD.

A revision may not necessarily require the submission of an entirely new Assessment. It need only focus on the material change and appropriate adjustments to the analyses, assessments, priorities, or goals.

STEERING COMMITTEE FOR CITIZEN PARTICIPATION

The Community Development Steering Committee is a group of nine citizen volunteers who are an essential part of the planning process. All eligible program applications recommended by DCHD Staff along with an expert technical advisory group are presented to the Steering Committee for review and feedback prior to presentation to City Council.

MEMBERSHIP

A Steering Committee for Citizen Participation, henceforth referred to as the Steering Committee, shall consist of nine members. The criteria for membership on the Steering Committee shall be as follows:

- Members must be:
 - At least five sitting members will need to meet one of the following requirements:
 - Residents of Community Development (CD) eligible (low to moderate-income) areas;
 - Qualify as a presumed benefit under CDBG requirements meaning they qualify for CDBG services (over the age of 62, disabled, etc.);
 - Demonstrate knowledge of, or experience in business or economic development;
 - Prior experience sitting on a board; and
 - Demonstrate experience in public service such as service provider or non-profit background
 - At least two sitting members must meet one of the following requirements:
 - Demonstrate experience in one of the following construction, facilities management or maintenance, housing expert
 - The two remaining seats will be open for any community member interested and will be evaluated based on his/her application and qualifications.

- The Mayor and each City Representative will appoint one individual to the Steering Committee. Appointed Steering Committee members must reside in the district that they represent. The Mayor's appointment must reside within the El Paso city limits. Each individual appointee will be confirmed by City Council.
- <u>Term of Office</u>: Each confirmed Steering Committee member may serve a term of office for two (2) years, with the term expiring on the second Tuesday of June. A member may serve for two (2) full consecutive terms. A member may continue to serve until a successor is appointed.
- Membership Termination: Any member of the Steering Committee who fails to attend three consecutive regular or called
 meetings of the Committee shall be reported by the CD Director to the Mayor and City Council so that consideration may
 be given to the removal of such member. Any vacancy on the Steering Committee shall be filled by the City Council for the
 remainder of the unexpired term in accordance with the provisions provided under the membership requirements of this
 document. Any Steering Committee member may be removed from the Steering Committee by City Council, in accordance
 with provisions of the City Charter.

RESPONSIBILITIES

The Steering Committee shall serve in an advisory capacity to the City Council to identify community development and housing needs and formulate recommendations for the Community Development Program. Responsibilities of the Steering Committee shall include:

- Review and comment on the development of, or revisions to, the Citizen Participation Plan;
- Review comments and proposals submitted by citizens, neighborhood groups, City Departments, etc., and at public hearings;
- Form an Appeals/Grievance Subcommittee, chaired by the Vice-Chair, and comprised of two other Steering Committee members. The Appeals/Grievance Subcommittee's purpose is to hear appeals and/or grievances from service category members regarding process and funding level issues. All appeals will be heard after review team recommendations have been finalized and before the Steering Committee as a whole reviews their recommendations. The Appeals/Grievance Subcommittee may also be sent issues from City Council for additional examination and recommendation, provided those issues fall within the purview of the Steering Committee duties.
- Review Community Development plans and projects recommendations prepared by the DCHD staff and/or technical advisory panel;
- · Provide comments to City Council on program decisions and recommendations; and
- Review and comment on proposed amendments to the Community Development Program.
- <u>Functioning</u>: The Steering Committee, annually, shall choose a Chair and a Vice- Chair from among its membership at the first meeting in October. The term of both Chair and Vice-Chair shall be for one (1) year and be limited to no more than two (2) consecutive terms. The term of the Chair and Vice-Chair shall begin at the first meeting of October of each year. The Vice-Chair shall act as the Chair during the absence of the Chair from a Committee meeting and shall serve as the Chair of the Appeals/Grievance Subcommittee. The Chair shall conduct Steering Committee meetings in a fair and orderly manner, and shall encourage all members to participate in Committee discussions.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST

Pursuant to the conflict of interest provision in 24 CFR 570.611, applicant must divulge during their tenure or for one year thereafter if:

- Is an employee, agent, consultant, officer, elected official, or appointed official of the City, or of any designated public
 agencies or of subrecipients that are receiving funds;
- Exercise or have exercised any functions or responsibilities with respect to CDBG-assisted activities or who are in a position to participate in a decision making process or gain inside information with regard to such activities; or
- May obtain a financial interest or benefit form a CDBG-assisted activity, or have a financial interest in any contract, subcontract, or agreement with respect to a CDBG-assisted activity, or with respect to the proceeds of the CDBG activity, either for themselves or those with whom they have a business or immediate family ties.

Potential Steering Committee members who may display any potential conflict of interest may still be selected to serve at the discretion of the CD Director.

A member of the Steering Committee who is an employee, officer, agent, consultant or representative of an agency submitting an application for funding with Community Development dollars must recuse themselves from voting on any matters related to their program and/or affiliated organization.

ADDITIONAL GUIDELINES

- The Committee may choose to adopt a parliamentary guide such as Robert's Rules of Order.
- The Steering Committee shall conduct meetings as needed and when recommended by the Community Development staff.
- The Committee shall be emailed a notice/agenda of each meeting; another method of communication can be used in lieu of email if requested by a member.
- A public notice informing citizens where and when the meetings shall be held will also be posted 72 hours before each
 meeting on the Bulletin Board at City Hall in accordance with the Texas Open Meetings Act. This will provide citizens with
 an opportunity to be involved in the planning, implementation and assessment stages of the program. All meetings shall
 be conducted in an open manner with freedom of access for all interested citizens. All meetings will be held at locations
 that are accessible to persons with disabilities.
- A quorum must be present before the Steering Committee may vote on any matter. A quorum shall be a majority of the
 total membership; however, member vacancies, resulting from events such as term expiration, removals or resignations,
 which reduce the total membership of the Committee, shall proportionately reduce the number of members required for a
 quorum. All recommendations shall be determined by a vote among Steering Committee members.

ANNUAL ACTION PLAN

The Annual Action Plan is developed according to the steps set out below. In the course of this process, City residents will be given the opportunity to submit proposals and comments on the programs. A specific effort will be made to inform low- and moderate-income persons and residents of low- and moderate-income areas about the proposal and comment process and to involve them in the process. Such efforts may include, but are not limited to, contacting neighborhood associations and civic organizations in low- and moderate-income areas, distributing handbills or other written literature in eligible areas, posting information on the City's website and use of the media. Written citizen proposals and comments will also be encouraged. DCHD will publish a notice in English and Spanish in a local newspaper of general circulation stating how and when proposals and comments may be submitted and also the date, time, place and purpose of public hearings held to solicit proposals and comments. The media will be used whenever possible to advertise these meetings and promote attendance at these public hearings. Interested persons will also be invited to participate at other points in the process, including review of proposals and adoption of the final Annual Action Plan. This process will afford low- and moderate-income persons and other interested citizens an opportunity to participate in the development of the final Annual Action Plan.

PUBLIC HEARINGS

All public hearings and neighborhood meetings will be held at convenient times and locations that permit participation by citizens and organizations. All sites selected will be fully accessible to persons with disabilities. Such hearings and meetings will be conducted in English and Spanish as requested by those attending.

DCHD will make every reasonable effort to inform citizens, particularly low- and moderate-income persons and residents of eligible areas, of the schedule and purpose of these hearings and neighborhood meetings. The Department will publicize these hearings and neighborhood meetings through various media, the City's website, neighborhood associations and organizations serving low- and moderate-income persons to encourage citizen input. The purpose and procedures of both the Community Development Program and the particular public hearing or neighborhood meeting will be explained in sufficient detail to allow citizens to understand and effectively contribute to the program.

STAGES OF DEVELOPMENT

- Public Hearings to Solicit Proposals. The first stage in developing the Annual Action Plan involves defining neighborhood objectives and soliciting preliminary proposals and comments. One citywide public hearing will be held to solicit comments about housing and community development needs and proposals for community development. In addition, one or more neighborhood meetings may also be held to provide neighborhood residents with an opportunity to propose projects. Specific efforts will be made to inform and involve residents of low- and moderate-income areas. Such efforts may include, but are not limited to, contacting neighborhood and civic associations and organizations in low- and moderate-income areas, distributing handbills or other written literature in eligible areas, posting information on the City's website and use of the media. Written citizen proposals and comments will also be encouraged. A specified period and a reasonable deadline for submission of preliminary proposals and comments will be set and publicized in accordance with the methods stated in this paragraph
- **Technical Advisory Panel**. The second step of the Annual Action Plan development is a review of proposed projects by a technical advisory panel, which may consist of DCHD staff and subject panel experts. This panel will review all feasible, proposed projects and make a recommendation to the Steering Committee.
- Steering Committee Meetings to Review Recommendations. During the third step of the Annual Action Plan
 development, the Steering Committee, as a whole, shall review program recommendations for comment. The Committee
 shall not create subcommittees to review the proposals received. Residents, neighborhood associations, organizations,
 City Departments, etc. that submitted proposals will be invited to appear before the Steering Committee, as a whole, to
 briefly explain and justify the purpose and need for their program/project. The Steering Committee, as a whole, shall
 prioritize the projects reviewed.
- Submission of Budget Recommendation to City Council. During the fourth step of the Annual Action Plan development, DCHD staff, in conjunction with its technical advisory panels, consolidates its recommendations and prepares a final budget recommendation that is presented to City Council. If the Steering Committee concurs with the DCHD staff recommendation, a consensus budget recommendation will be submitted to City Council. If the Steering Committee disagrees with any part of the DCHD staff recommendation, DCHD staff will ensure that members' comments are shared with Council. The City Council will review the recommended budget(s) and subsequently a Draft Annual Action Plan will be made available for public comment for a period of 30 days. This Draft Annual Action Plan will be published in English and Spanish in a local newspaper of general circulation to afford residents and organizations an opportunity to examine its content and to submit comments to the City. Any comments received will be reviewed and City Council may, at its option, modify the Annual Action Plan subsequent to its publication and prior to adopting a final Annual Action Plan.
- Public Hearing on Proposed Annual Action Plan. During the fifth and final step, City Council will review comments received since publication of the Draft Annual Action Plan and formulate its final Annual Action Plan. This Final Annual Action Plan will be introduced at a public hearing at which residents will have the opportunity to comment on the proposed activities in the budget as well as program performance and needs. Upon completion of the public hearing, the City Council will vote to adopt a Final Annual Action Plan based upon budget recommendations and comments presented to the Council. Upon adoption, the Final Annual Action Plan and required certifications will be submitted to the Regional Office of the Department of Housing and Urban Development for review and approval. Copies of this Final Annual Action Plan will be available to the public at the City's public libraries; the University of Texas at El Paso Library; El Paso Community College campus libraries; and the City's web site. (See Attachment E) Copies can be obtained upon request at DCHD, 801 Texas Avenue.

PROPOSAL REVIEW PROCEDURE

DCHD, as lead agency, shall make an initial review of all verbal and written proposals received to determine if they are eligible for Community Development funding under Federal Regulations. The Department shall notify requestors in writing, when possible, if their proposal is ineligible for Community Development funding. Eligible proposals shall be forwarded to the appropriate City Departments, government entities or non-profit agencies and for review and comment, and for preparation of an application, if necessary. For more information, refer to the PY2019-2020 Policies and Procedures.

SUBSTANTIAL AMENDMENTS

Any substantial amendment to the Community Development program as set forth in approved applications will be presented to the Steering Committee for their information and recommendation. Additionally, the Director of Community + Human Development may grant exceptions to policies and procedures contained within this document provided that those exceptions do not violate federal regulations and are made prior to presentation of the Draft Annual Action Plan to the Steering Committee and commencement of the 30-day public comment period.

A substantial amendment constitutes a significant change to the program, such as adding, deleting or significantly changing project scopes or allocations according to the following criteria:

- The City changes the method of distribution of funds.
- The City changes the purpose and scope of a project by increasing or decreasing the project's scope of services, target population, or budget by more than 75% and \$50,000 from the original description. This does not apply to changes to activities within an existing project unless it would result in a change of more than 75% and \$50,000 to the overall project.
- The City changes the location of a physical project outside the previously described area of the population to be served to another eligible area. This does not apply to Public Services, Economic Development or other non- physical projects.
- The City changes the eligible beneficiaries of an activity by reducing or increasing the beneficiaries by more than 50% due to any of the following circumstances:
 - For physical projects, change of physical location of the project to another eligible area and therefore changing the eligible service area.
 - For non-physical projects such as Public Services and Economic Development, a change of eligible client criteria as categorized in the Consolidated Plan (e.g. Seniors to Youth).

Individuals, organizations or City Departments proposing substantial amendments may be invited by the Steering Committee to make a brief presentation to explain and comment on the changes prior to making recommendations to City Council. A notice of a proposed substantial amendment will be published in English and Spanish in a local general circulation newspaper in order to provide citizens with reasonable notice and opportunity to comment on the substantial amendment. The Department will record and consider comments received and may modify the proposed substantial amendment if warranted. All amendments must be submitted to City Council for review and approval. Upon approval, amendments will be submitted to the Housing and Urban Development Regional Office. A summary of comments and a summary of any comments not accepted and the reasons therefor shall be attached to the substantial amendment. A description of all substantial amendments adopted will also be available to the public at the Community Development office during normal business hours.

The Steering Committee may serve in an advisory role in reviewing and making recommendations to City Council on proposed amendments to the programs. The Steering Committee will not review routine operational matters related to program implementation, even though City Council action may be required on such matters.

PROGRAM IMPLEMENTATION + AMENDMENTS

Upon approval of the final Annual Action Plan, DCHD shall be responsible for initiating and monitoring the implementation of the proposed activities contained in the budget in accordance with the stated objectives. Day-to-day operational decisions and actions necessary to ensure implementation of projects shall be the function of the Department and will not generally be subject to Steering Committee review. However, the Steering Committee will be advised of the status and progress of physical projects throughout the year. Also, the Steering Committee will receive a physical project status report prepared by Community Development staff at least quarterly to keep them informed on program implementation.

ASSESSMENT OF PERFORMANCE

Public Hearings on Performance and Comment Process: Citizens are encouraged to comment on the performance of the City's Community Development Program and the extent to which project activities achieved their objectives. Comments, inquiries and complaints may be submitted to the Community Development office or to any Steering Committee or City Council member. It is the responsibility of any Steering Committee or City Council member to forward the comments, inquiries, and complaints received to the Community Development staff for a written response. Community Development staff will respond to inquiries and comments received as expeditiously as possible. Verbal complaints shall be transcribed by the Community Development staff and an appropriate response provided. Written complaints will be responded to in

writing by the Community Development office within fifteen (15) working days of their receipt. Citizen comments, inquiries and complaints may also be presented at public hearings or at Steering Committee meetings (an opportunity for citizen comment is regularly included on the agenda). As stated previously, each year a public hearing on program performance and needs is conducted at a regularly scheduled City Council meeting specifically held to solicit citizen comments on approved activities as well as proposed activities.

Community Development staff will review all comments, complaints and suggestions received in assessing program performance and the extent to which projects and activities achieved their objectives. The results of these assessments will be taken into consideration in the planning and selection of future projects and activities proposed for Community Development funding.

- <u>Performance Reporting</u>: The Department of Community and Human Development annually prepares a Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report (CAPER) that includes:
 - Activity Summary
 - o Status of Funds
 - Direct Benefit Activities
 - Actions to Affirmatively Further Fair Housing (AFFH)
 - Anti-displacement

This report also contains an assessment by the Department of the relationship of the use of Community Development Block Grant funds to the Community Development Objectives described in the final Annual Action Plan.

Upon completion of the CAPER, it is forwarded to the Area Office of the U.S. Department of HUD. Simultaneously, a Public Notice in English and Spanish shall be placed in a newspaper of general circulation and the City's web site making the Report available to citizens. It is available at no charge at the Office of DCHD, and at the City's public libraries, the UTEP Library and at the El Paso Community College Campus Libraries for review (See Attachment E).

AVAILABLE INFORMATION

The City shall provide full and timely disclosure of its program records and information consistent with applicable laws and regulations regarding personal privacy and confidentiality. Copies of the following material shall be available for citizen review, upon request, during regular business hours, at the Department of Community Development, 801 Texas Avenue:

- All mailings and promotional material;
- The Citizen Participation Plan and schedules of public hearings;
- The records of CD public hearings;
- The proposed and approved annual action plan for the current year;
- The proposed and approved Consolidated Plan;
- All prior applications including letters of approval and grant agreements;
- All Performance Reports, Status Reports and other reports that may be required by HUD;
- Anti-Displacement Strategy and Tenant Relocation Assistance Policy; and
- Copies of the regulations governing the Community Development Program and documents on other important program requirements